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STATE OF MAINE REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS
RFP SUBMITTED QUESTIONS & ANSWERS SUMMARY
	RFP NUMBER AND TITLE:
	RFP#202506087 – Remote Off-Grid Cashless Payment Kiosk

	RFP ISSUED BY:
	Dept of Agriculture, Conservation, & Forestry

	SUBMITTED QUESTIONS DUE DATE:
	July 16, 2025

	QUESTION & ANSWER SUMMARY ISSUED:
	July 21, 2025

	PROPOSAL DUE DATE:
	July 31, 2025, no later than 11:59 p.m., local time

	PROPOSALS DUE TO:
	Proposals@maine.gov


Provided below are submitted written questions received and the Department’s answer.
	1
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Part II, Page 7
	We do have a question about page 7 of the RFP, which states that the 40 kiosks would be installed at a rate of approximately 1 per year.  After talking to kiosk vendors, this seems to be a significant determent, as the technology in cashless kiosks changes rapidly.  Can you please clarify how the state intends to handle this?  If the state were to commit to more installations in the near future, this would be a much more attractive contract for us and our vendors.

	
	Answer

	
	The State cannot commit to more installations in the near future. The 40 stated kiosk locations is a list of POTENTIAL locations, not guaranteed installation locations


	2
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Part II, Page 8
	“Bids need to include a separate breakdown of delivery, installation, set-up, annual service fee, and optional cellular modem purchase and fee for each device for both solar-powered and hard-wired options”

Does the bid require that we tally all of these? It seems like some are mutually exclusive. How will the comparative tally be calculated?

	
	Answer

	
	The State will make their decisions based on the individual fees and which ones might be applicable to various Park locations. 


	3
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Appendix D – Excel Worksheet, Page 24
	What page is the Drivers Policy Protection Act found on within the 356 page document?

	
	Answer

	
	The Driver’s Privacy Protection Act starts on Page 304 of the referenced PDF


	4
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Submission Format, Page 11
	File 3 says that a PDF Format is preferred, however Appendix D is an Excel Spreadsheet (Technical Assessment Form) PLUS the Scope of Service responses.  How would you like the Excel spreadsheet labeled for submission since “File 3” will actually be two different formats (one PDF for the Scope of Work and one Excel spreadsheet for the Technical Assessment Form) 

	
	Answer

	
	Labe the Files “File 3 – Excel.xlsx” and “File 3 – PDF.pdf”


	5
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	N/A
	What are the biggest challenges or pain points experienced by staff and/or visitors with the current payment kiosk? Please provide details regarding the core issues that the State is looking to solve with this project.

	
	Answer

	
	The State does not currently have a payment kiosk at Quoddy Head State Park


	6
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	N/A
	What is the annual contract value of the existing payment kiosks at Quoddy State Park?

	
	Answer

	
	The State does not currently have a payment kiosk at Quoddy Head State Park


	7
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	N/A
	How many payment kiosks are currently in use at Quoddy State Park? Is the State looking to maintain or increase this amount?

	
	Answer

	
	The State does not currently have a payment kiosk at Quoddy Head State Park. We are looking to add one kiosk.


	8
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	N/A
	What is the total annual revenue generated from kiosk payments at Quoddy State Park?

	
	Answer

	
	The State does not currently have a payment kiosk at Quoddy Head State Park.


	9
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Part II, Page 7
	Are entry fees the only type of transactions processed at the kiosks? If not, what other types of fees are collected at the kiosks?

	
	Answer

	
	Possible transactions at the first machine at Quoddy Head State Park are Donations, Entrance Fees and Commercial License Fees.  Fees at additional locations may include Boat fees, Dumping Station Fees, Camping Fees, Donations, Entrance Fees and Commercial License Fees.  Additional fee types may need to be added in the future based on fee structure changes.  


	10
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	N/A
	How does the State currently manage age verification for Maine Senior Citizens?

	
	Answer

	
	The honor system. 


	11
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Part II, Page 7
	Please provide a breakdown of annual revenue generated from kiosk payments at all of the potential future locations listed in the RFP.

	
	Answer

	
	The State does not currently have payment kiosks at any of these locations.


	12
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	N/A
	Please provide photos/images of the current kiosk setup at Quoddy State Park.

	
	Answer

	
	The State does not currently have a payment kiosk at Quoddy Head State Park.


	13
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Part II, Page 7
	What is the target timeframe for installation of the new payment kiosk? Is the goal to have the system live by May 2026 prior to the beginning of the park season?

	
	Answer

	
	Ideally the payment kiosk would be installed prior to the Park opening in May 2026.


	14
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	N/A
	What is the payment processing vendor that is currently used by the State?

	
	Answer

	
	Credit Card payments are currently processed by Elavon.


	15
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	N/A
	What is the expiration date of the current kiosk contract?

	
	Answer

	
	The State does not currently have a payment kiosk contract at Quoddy Head State Park.


	16
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Part II, Page 7
	The RFP lists 39 additional State Park locations for potential expansion of the selected payment kiosk and notes that additional kiosks would be installed in the Fall of 2026 and “would likely be one additional unit & location per year.” To clarify, is it the State’s intention to expand the implementation at a rate of one kiosk per park per year over the course of the next three decades?

	
	Answer

	
	The State cannot commit to more installations in the near future. The 40 stated kiosk locations is a list of POTENTIAL locations, not guaranteed installation locations or dates.


	17
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	N/A
	Do State Park staff members maintain an onsite presence at Quoddy Head State Park? If not, please explain the process by which staff members validate that park visitors have provided the appropriate payment.

	
	Answer

	
	Quoddy Head State Park has a small staff that provides an onsite presence.


	18
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	N/A
	What is the annual number of visits at Quoddy Head State Park? Please provide a breakdown of visitation numbers for the following categories: 

· Adult Maine Resident

· Senior Maine Resident

· Adult Non Resident

· Senior Non Resident

· Children 5-11 years old

· Children under 5

	
	Answer

	
	Quoddy Head State Park averages 82,000 visitors a year. We do not have any further breakdown.


	19
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	N/A
	What type of information needs to be collected at the fee station (e.g. license plate #, identification, parking spot #, etc.)?

	
	Answer

	
	We need a ticket that shows what they paid with the park name and date on it so it can be placed on the vehicle dash. It could potentially be useful for the ticket to have a breakdown of what they paid, but this is not a requirement.


	20
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Part II, Page 8
	Please provide more details regarding the desired signage required for the equipment (e.g. size, material, specifications, etc.).

	
	Answer

	
	The State will be providing in-house signage for this kiosk.  


	21
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	N/A
	Does the existing payment kiosk at Quoddy Head State Park currently have any shelter or coverage (e.g. pavilion, arbor, box, etc.)?

	
	Answer

	
	The State does not currently have a payment kiosk at Quoddy Head State Park.


	22
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	N/A
	Would it be possible to extend the due date?

	
	Answer

	
	The State would prefer not to extend this date. 
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